MINUTES OF THE

SELMA CITY COUNCIL
FEBRUARY 10, 2009
5:00 P.M.
Call to Order
Invocation: Reverend Winston Williams, Pastor
Rose Chapel Church
Pledge of Allegiance

The Selma City Council met in a regular session in the Council Chambers of City Hall on Monday,
February 10, 2009 at 5:00 p-m.

ROLL CALL

The following members were present during roll call: Council President Dr. Geraldine Allen and Council
members Dr. Cecil Williamson, Susan Keith, Dr. Monica Newton, Angela Benjamin, Benny L. Tucker, Bennie
R. Crenshaw and Corey Bowie. Others present were Mayor George Evans, City Clerk Ivy S. Harrison, City
Attorney Jimmy Nunn, City Treasurer Cynthia Mitchell and the Mayor’s Executive Assistant Brenda
Smothers. Councilman Randolph was absent during roll call, but arrived at 6:13 p-m.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

President Allen asked for the approval of the agenda items. A motion was made by Councilman Bowie, and
seconded by Councilman Tucker, to approve the agenda items as written. The motion carried with a
unanimous (show of hands) vote of the Council members present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

After approval of the agenda, President Allen asked for the approval of the minutes of January 27, 2009
regular meeting minutes. A motion was made by Councilman Bowie, and seconded by Councilman Tucker,
to approve the minutes of January 27, 2009. The motion carried with a unanimous (show of hands) vote of
the Council members present.

CITIZEN’S REQUEST

Reverend Jim Johnson, Associate Pastor

Re: Gateway Baptist Church; “Walk-To-Calvary”

Reverend Johnson stated he and the Church request the Council to approve the “Walk-To-Calvary” which they do every year. Reverend
Johnson stated the Celebration begins on Thursday, April 9, 2009, at 7:00 p.m., at the Songs of Selma Park, for the Last Supper and Arrest
of Jesus Christ; on Good Friday, April 10*, they will be on the steps of City Hall, to have the Trial, and then they will walk down
Highway 22 to Valley Creek Park where the Crucifixion is Re-Enacted, and on Sunday, April 12, at 6:00 a.m., a Sunrise Service will be at
Valley Creek Park, to celebrate the Resurrection of Jesus Christ. Reverend Johnson invited the Mayor and Council, along with the
Community and everyone else to come out and help with the Re-Enactment. A motion was made by Councilwoman Crenshaw, and
seconded by Councilman Williamson, to grant Gateway Baptist Church the request and permit for the “Walk-To-Calvary” March,
beginning on Thursday, April 9, 2009 and Good Friday, April 10, 2009, and ending on Sunday, April 12, 2009, with the Sunrise Service. A
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed with a unanimous vote of the Council members present.

MAYOR’S REPORT

A. Stimulus Package. Mayor Evans stated he gave to each of the Council members present at
the Work Session a copy of the Stimulus Package of the meeting attended on last Friday. Mayor Evans
further stated there were many Mayors and individuals present at that meeting, who were trying to see how
much money was available to the Blackbelt that our President is proposing in the Stimulus Package for Selma
and other cities in the Blackbelt. Mayor Evans stated in that Stimulus Package there was no decision reached
at that meeting, but mainly discussion as to the outcome of that Package, and how effective it would be.

B. Proposed Signage -~ “Gateway to Selma”. Mayor Evans stated to Council that on last night

he shared with them the possibility of a new sign for our City, as we come into Selma. Mayor Evans further
stated right now, at the foot of the Edmund Pettus Bridge, it would just be one for the purpose that we could
welcome individuals or Tourism into the City of Selma. Mayor Evans stated it is a “work in progress” which
basically says “Welcome to Some Place Special - Selma”, and wanted to get input/feedback from the Council
as to whether or not this is something that they would like. Mayor Evans further stated he had been meeting
with a committee for about two months, trying to come up with ideas as to what they can do to change our



PAGE 2 OF 8

SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
FEBRUARY 10, 2009

5:00 P.M.

MAYOR’S REPORT

image and perception, and the possibility of the “Gateway to Selma” being a new logo for the City. Mayor
Evans stated it is his hope that the sign can be up in time for Jubilee, and any feedback from the Council and
Citizens will be appreciated. Mayor Evans stated the cost of the proposed sign is about $4,000.00, and will be
funded through private donors and Tourism. During discussion, President Allen stated she would like to
ask Mayor Evans, as done before with their Sub-Committees, to allow the Sub-Committee plus any
individuals that he wants to have on that Sub-Committee, to meet together and maybe come up with ideas.
President Allen also asked Mayor Evans if he would give them a list of names of who he would like to be on
that committee. Mrs. Patti Sexton came forward and asked if she could address the Council, stating that they
are on a deadline, trying to get the sign up for Jubilee which is only about 2% weeks away. Mrs. Sexton
further stated that the committee who has taken the initiative with the sign idea, is made up of members of
Leadership Selma, and they are also going to help pay for it, and asked if they could at least move forward
with getting the “Some Place Special” sign up, so as to at least have it up in time for Jubilee, and come back
with any changes after that? President Allen stated she thinks the committee can meet quickly enough, and it
should not take long for them, and Councilwoman Benjamin, as Chairperson of that Committee, stated that
they could meet almost immediately, to try and have a decision made in time for the Jubilee. President Allen
asked Councilwoman Benjamin if she could find out tonight and inform the Council as to when her
Committee could meet.

C Resolution #R183-08/09 — Wiregrass Archaeological Consulting, LLC. Mayor Evans stated
to Council that Resolution #R183-08/09 was discussed at last night’s Work Session, and that said Resolution
#R183-08/09 represents an agreement with Wiregrass Archaeological Consulting, LLC, to perform
professional archaeological services on the site of the Riverfront Development Project. Mayor Evans asked
Council’s favorable consideration of the same in the amount of $7,230.00, to be expended via Account #1.6000
6800-12, with the understanding that the City will be reimbursed of said amount by the Alabama Department
of Transportation. A motion was made by Councilman Tucker, and seconded by Councilwoman Newton, to
approve Resolution #R183-08/09 in the amount of $7,230.00. A roll call vote was taken and the motion
passed with a unanimous vote of the Council members present.

D. Mayor’s Charity Ball. Mayor Evans stated he had met with the Red Cross Committee, Ms.
Jackie Caldwell, Chairperson, about the possibility of doing a Mayor’s Charity Ball for the purpose of raising
funds for those agencies that need financial help in our City. Mayor Evans further stated to Council that he
had forwarded each of them an Invitation to the Mayor’s Charity Ball, which will be on next Tuesday,
February 17%, from 7:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m., at the former Goody’s Building in the Selma Mall. Mayor
Evans stated that there will be an Orchestra playing music, and that they may dance if they choose to, along
with a wonderful menu planned for the food. Mayor Evans further stated he would love for all Citizens, and
anyone else who would like to attend, to please make plans to attend. Mayor Evans further stated the ticket
amounts are as follow: $50.00 for Singles, and $75.00 for Couples, and that this year all of the funds raised
from the event will go towards the American Red Cross. Mayor Evans stated to Council that they should
already have their information and encourages them, and the public to attend. Mayor Evans further stated if
any additional information is needed, to please feel free to contact his office. Mayor Evans stated again,
everybody is invited!

E. Riverboat Inaugural Cruise. Mayor Evans stated he also spoke to the Council at the Work
Session last night about an invitation to the Inaugural Riverboat Cruise on Friday, February 13t at 2:00 p.m.,
for Council Members and their Guests. Mayor Evans further stated the Council approved the Riverboat from
the Gentleman who came some months ago. Mayor Evans stated the Riverboat is here and prepared to serve
our Citizens, and hopefully will be bringing in more revenue into our City. Mayor Evans stated he thinks this
will be an entertaining event for the Council.

F. Police Department Report. Mayor Evans stated to Council that they should have before
them a copy of the Police Department Report, which gives all of the incidents reports by Wards, along with a
copy of the Loud Noise Complaints. Mayor Evans stated these reports were prepared by Chief of Police Riley
and his Staff, for the month of January, 2009. Councilman Williamson stated he believes this is unacceptable,
that there was only one loud noise citation issued in the whole City by the whole Department for the month
of January. Mayor Evans stated that there is no doubt that our citizens have been constantly talking about
loud noise in all of the Wards, and he is not sure what the rationale is but that he will get with Chief Riley on
tomorrow for an explanation. Councilman Bowie stated he did talk with Chief Riley who informed him that
he was going to be doing a Public Service Announcement, and also going through each Ward with unmarked
cars. President Allen stated the citations do need to occur, and Mayor Evans stated to President Allen that he
agrees “100%", and thanked Councilman Bowie for making that report, and will follow-up on that as well.

G. Monthly Financial Report. Mayor Evans stated to Council that they should each have a
copy of the Monthly Financial Report that Ms. Mitchell has provided them with. Mayor Evans further stated
that from the report it shows a reflection of the variance as to the difference, and as can be seen, things are
declining, and he is sure it is because of the economy as it relates to the “down flow” of our cash.



PAGE 3 OF 8
SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
FEBRUARY 10, 2009

5:00 P.M.
MAYOR’S REPORT
H. Brownfield Assessment Grant — Expenditure & Revenue Account. Mayor Evans stated he

thinks this came up last night after he had left, but he does have a copy of the information he thinks they
asked for last night. Mayor Evans further stated he has not had a chance to read over it because he had just
gotten it today, and perhaps they have not either, but that it was prepared for them to review and discuss at
some point later. Councilman Williamson thanked Mayor Evans for providing this information for them, and
asked the question, of whether Mrs. Love is being paid through this particular grant, and if all of the money
the City is paying her, through this grant? Mayor Evans answered and stated, that it is and that Ms. Love
does not receive any funds through the City, and that the percentage that she gets is through grant writing.
Ms. Cynthia Mitchell came forward to further address the Council on this issue, and stated that a check is
written to Mrs. Love out of the General Fund, and then the General Fund is reimbursed by Brownfield.

L Jubilee. Mayor Evans stated to Council that as they know Jubilee will be coming up the first
weekend in March, and he as Mayor, met with the Committee some months ago, and stated that the City
would be a Co-Sponsor in the Jubilee, as we have always been, with Police protection and security, and that
Public Works would assist with setting up, and so forth. Mayor Evans stated he indicated to the Committee,
that he did not think the City or the Council had any funds to donate to that particular cause, unless it comes
through individual monies from Council Members’ discretionary funds, but as from the Budget side, unless
the Council wanted to try and find some money to appropriate, he did not know but he did indicate at that
time, in spite of most recent things that have occurred, that we would be a Co-Sponsor from the standpoint of
the Police Department, Public Works; assisting with the Souvenir Booklet and to possibly try and host a
reception, and that other than that, that is basically all that he made a commitment to at that time. Mayor
Evans further stated he had met with the committee for the Battle of Selma, and made that same commitment.
Mayor Evans stated, as Mayor, he pledges the same support to Market Day and the Pilgrimage, because it is
our City and it is all about Tourism.

J. Code Enforcement Ordinance. Mayor Evans stated to Council as they know we are
implementing Code Enforcement this season, and it is intended to make sure that they send a message to all
of our homeowners and property owners that there is a law and that there are codes. Mayor Evans further
stated that he has asked Attorney Nunn to pull the codes that are currently on the books and make copies for
the Council so that they can review those ordinances to see whether or not they need to make changes, and
“tweak” it before they enact policy on their Citizens in terms of their property. Mayor Evans asked President
Allen to appoint a committee of Council members who would be able to report back as to their findings.
Mayor Evans stated there are Citizens who have stated they would like to volunteer and become liaisons for
code enforcement for their particular ward, and he welcomes that to anyone who would like to. Mayor Evans
further stated that they are planning to have orientation and training as it relates to code enforcement
volunteers, and certificates will be issued once training is complete. Mayor Evans stated, as a part of the
process, with the Council’s help, “we will change Selma” to the extent of regaining our neighborhoods, and
for individuals who own property but chooses not to maintain that property, will be notified and asked to
meet the requirements, or they will be cited, because that is the law. President Allen stated to Council if
they are interested in being on the sub-committee for updating the codes, that they should raise their hands
so that they can be put on that committee. After a show of hands, President Allen stated Councilwoman
Newton and Councilwoman Keith will be a part of the Sub-Committee for Updating the Codes.

K. Signs for Street to Re-Name Jeff Davis Avenue to J. L. Chestnut, Jr. Boulevard. Mayor

Evans stated to Council that they should also have within their packets the cost of the signs to re-name Jeff
Davis Avenue to J. L. Chestnut, Jr. Boulevard. President Allen stated, for the record, that there are attached
samples for the historic street signs at a cost of $105.00 each, and that they will need four (4) for a total of
$420.00, plus shipping and handling. President Allen further stated they also have copies of estimates that it
will cost to place the signs up, with an ending balance of $3,059.50.

L. Back Door Policy ~ City Hall. Mayor Evans stated to Council that he would like to
Announce to Citizens and City Employees. that the back door of the City Hall Building will be eventually
locked for security reasons, and that a sign has already gone up, stating for the general public to use the front
door to City Hall for entrance. Mayor Evans further stated that keys, or a combination to get in and out, will
be provided to City Hall Employees to gain entry, once the door is locked. Mayor Evans stated in their
packets is a potential cost for that, and he is not asking the Council to take any action tonight, but that he
wanted them to be aware of it. Mayor Evans stated if they have any questions, please let him know.

M. Prayer Vigil. Mayor Evans stated they had an awesome Prayer Vigil last night, and that he is
excited about the turn-out. Mayor Evans stated it was not 400 people in attendance, but that it felt like it was,
and that he felt revitalized when he left. Mayor Evans further stated it was a genuine and sincere Prayer
Time, that he could feel the Spirit. Mayor Evans stated this will be ongoing, every 2nd Monday in the month,
from 5:30 p.m. until 6:30 p.m. Mayor Evans stated he welcomes the opportunity to do it again, and thanked
the Council members who were present, along with the Citizens who attended. President Allen stated to
Mayor Evans that she and the Council concur with him, that it was very powerful.



PAGE 4 OF 8

SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
FEBRUARY 10, 2009

5:00 P.M.

CITY ATTORNEY’'S REPORT

A. Submission to Justice Department - Precinct Changes. Attorney Nunn stated to Council
that they should have before them a copy of the Submission to the Justice Department, to Mr. Christopher

Coates, from the City of Selma, requesting pre-clearance for the voting precinct changes in Wards Two, Three,
and Six. Attorney Nunn further stated said Submission was forwarded to the Justice Department on January
29th,

B. Submission to Justice Department ~ Special Election. Attorney Nunn stated to Council that
they should also have before them a copy of the Submission to the Justice Department, to Mr. Christopher

Coates, from the City of Selma, requesting approval to have a Special Election on April 28, 2009, to give the
Citizens an opportunity to decide whether or not they want to change the method of selecting school board
members, elected vs. appointed. Attorney Nunn further stated said Submission was forwarded to the Justice
Department on February 2. Attorney Nunn stated within the next week he will be giving them a call
because we do need to know their answer very quickly on this so that we can move forward with the election.

C. Resolution #R182-08/09 — Globe Metallurgical, Incorporated. Attorney Nunn stated that
Resolution #R182-08/09 represents a support letter to Globe Metallurgical, Incorporated. Attorney Nunn
further stated he thinks that everyone knows that Globe Metallurgical has given an announcement that they
would cease operations for at least six months, beginning on March 2204 of this year. Following the reading
of said Resolution #R182-08/09 in its entirety by Attorney Nunn, a motion was made by Councilwoman
Newton, and seconded by Councilman Williamson, to approve Resolution #R182-08/09. A roll call vote was
taken and the motion passed with a unanimous vote of the Council members present. Attorney Nunn
stated a copy of the original copy of Resolution #R182-08/09 will be presented to Globe Metallurgical,
Incorporated by Mayor Evans and President Allen.

D. City of Selma and Gaiter Ventures, Incorporated — Definitive Agreement. Attorney Nunn
stated that the Council should have before them the Definitive Agreement, between the City of Selma and

Gaiter Ventures, Incorporated, as it relates to the Theater that is going to be located within the Selma Mall.
Attorney Nunn further stated Gaiter Ventures has entered into an agreement with Aronov Realty to construct
the Theater at the Mall. Attorney Nunn stated early on, this Council decided that they wanted to do
something as an incentive to assist them in bringing a Theater to the City of Selma. Attorney Nunn
referenced Page 5, Article 2.1, a-d, of the Agreement, which outlines the Incentives; namely, the City of Selma
waiving and exempting Gaiter Ventures for any and all building permit fees related to the construction of the
Theater, and that the City of Selma agrees to pay Gaiter Ventures, on a quarterly basis, Seventy-Five cents
(.75) for every ticket sold at the Theater, and that Twenty-Five cents (.25) would go towards the security.
Attorney Nunn stated State Law will allow us to do this under 94.01 Constitutional Article IV, and in doing
that there are several Opinions out there that state the Council must take this action as it relates to voting on
the agreement and also a resolution to accept the agreement and to provide this incentive. Attorney Nunn
further stated that they will do this at the next Council meeting, via the resolution and adopting the
agreement. Attorney Nunn stated that State law states they must do it at a public meeting, and he is planning
to bring this up at the next Council meeting. Attorney Nunn stated the second thing is that they must give
notice to the public as it relates to the public meeting or the Council meeting. Attorney Nunn stated in order
to comply with State Law, they have to give notice seven (7) days prior to the meeting, which they are already
doing for normal Council meeting announcements, so that the Citizens can attend this meeting, and if their
desire is to speak, then they can be allowed to speak during that Council meeting. Attorney Nunn stated the
League of Municipalities suggests that the public hearing be during the Council meeting, or thirty minutes
before the meeting starts. Attorney Nunn further stated the Council must meet those two qualifications
before it can take a vote on providing public funds to a private industry. During discussion, Attorney Nunn
was asked to find out how much the building fees are, that are being waived and to bring back a report to the
Council at the next Council meeting. During further discussion, President Allen stated that the Council will
have a Work Session prior to the next Council meeting, and that they would discuss this matter in more detail
during the Work Session, prior to a vote on this matter.

E. Liquor License Application — Danny Huett - Bottoms Up — 2519 Alabama Highway 14,
East. Attorney Nunn stated to Council that they should have before them an alcoholic beverage license

application on behalf of Mr. Danny Huett, Bottoms Up, located at 2519 Alabama Highway 14, East, which
was placed on 1%t Reading during the meeting prior to the last Council meeting. Attorney Nunn asked
Council consideration of the same. Councilwoman Crenshaw stated she has a few concerns as it relates to the
police report on the application, and asked if she was the only one concerned? President Allen stated she
concurs that she is concerned, and other Council members acknowledged that they, too, are concerned.
Councilwoman Crenshaw stated she is also concerned about the location, and how far it is from the Church.
During discussion, a motion was made by Councilman Randolph to table said alcoholic beverage license
application until the next Council meeting, in an effort for the Applicant to come before the Council and
address the Council with their concerns. The motion failed for lack of a second.



